
COURT OF APPEALS
STATE OF NEW YORK

In the Matter of DORrS L. SASSOWER,
An Attorney and Counselor-at-Law

GRTEVANCE COMMITTEE FOR THE
NINTH JUDICIAL DTSTRICT

Petit ioner-Respondent,

against -
DORIS L. SASSOWER,
Admitted Under the Name of
DORIS LIPSON SASSOWER

NOTICE OF UOTION
FOR LEAVE TO APPEAIJ

Respondent-Appe1 1 ant .

SIR:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE, that upon the annexed Affirmation

of David B. Goldstein, shrorn to on JuIy 18, 1991, the Decisions

and Orders of the Appellate Division, Second Departrnent, entered

on october 18, l-990, and June L2, 1991-, and the notices of entry

thereof and the Decision and order of the Appellate Division
j-mmediately, indefinitely, and unconditionalty suspending Doris

L. Sassower from the practice of Iaw, entered June L4, l-991,, and

served on June L9, L991 and the notice of entry thereof, and the

record in the Appellate Division, the appellant will move this
Court at the Court of Appeals Hall, City of Albany, New York, on

the 29th day of .fuly, L99L, at 10 a.m. for an ORDER:
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- a) pursuant to cPLR S 5502 (a) (r) , granting appellant

Doris L. Sassower leave to appeal to this Court from the Order of

the Appellate Division, Second Department, which irnrnediatelY,

indefinitely, and unconditionally suspended her from the practice

of Iaw in the State of New York;

b) staying the suspension of Doris L. Sassower nunc pro

tunc pending resolution of this motion, and if granted,

resolution of this appeal; and

c) granting such other and further relief as the Court

deems just and proper.

The grounds upon whlch this leave to appeal ls
requested are set forth in detall in the annexed affirmation of

David B. Goldstein and are concisely stated as follows:

l-. Whether the immediate suspension of Ms.

Sassower, without any findings, statement of reasons, of an evi-
dentiary hearing violated 22 NYCRR S 591-.4(1), conflicts with
decisions of this Court, violates due process and is against the

interests of substantial justice; and

2. Whether the Second Department's predicate

order of october 18, l-990, was unlawful in that this proceeding

was a) brought without a petition in violation of 22 NYCRR SS

691.4,691.L3(b); b) was based on improperly obtained confiden-

tial court records; c) that the court,s order improperly

delegated to Grievance Committee Counsel the sole discretion to
select a single medical expert to examine Ms. Sassot,fer, in viola-
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tion of 22 NycRR S 691.13(b)(1); and d) that the court lacked

personal jurisdictlon due to defective servlce under Jud. Law S

eo(6), (10).

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that answering papers, -lf

any, must be served on the undersigned on or before the return

date of this motion

PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that your personal appear-

ance in opposition to this motion is neither required nor

permitted.

Dated: New York, New York
July L9; L991 Yours, etc.,

RABINOWTTZ, BOUDIN, STANDARD,
KRINSKY & LIEBERMAN, P.C.

74O Broadway, 5th Floor
New York, New York LOOO3
(2L2 ) 2s4-1LL1-

Attorneys for Doris L.
Sassower

TO: cary Casella, Es{.
Chief Counsel
Grievance Committee, Ninth Judicial District
Crosswest Office Center
399 Knollwood Road -- Suite 2OO
White Plains, New York 10503
(er_4) e4e-454O
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COURT OF APPEALS
STATE OF NEW YORK

)
In the Matter of DORIS L. SASSOWER, )
An Attorney and Counselor-at-Law )

) AFFrR!{ATION rN-'
GRTEVANCE COMMITTEE rOR THE ) SUPPORT OF l{OrrON
NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) FOR LEAVE trO APPEAL

)
Petitioner-Respondent, I

)
against )

)
DORrS L. SASSOWER, )
Admitted Under the Name of )
DORrS LIPSON SASSOWER )

)Respondent-Appe1Iant. )

David B. Goldstein, an attorney duly admitted to
practice in the courts of the State of New York, affirms under

penalty of perjury:

INTRODUCTTON

l-. I am an associate at the law firm of Rabinowitz,

Boudin, Standard, Krinsky & Lieberman, p.C., attorneys for
appellant Doris L. Sassower. f am fu1ly familiar with the facts
and prior proceedings, and submit this affirmation in support of
appellant's motion for leave to appeal from a decision and order

of the Appellate Division, Second Department, dated June 14,

1991,, and served on Ms. Sassower on June L9, 199L (rrJune.14

order"). A copy of the decision and order, together with respon-

dent's notice of entry dated June L9, L99L, is annexed hereto as

Exhibit 1-. AIso appealed from are the decision and order of the

Appellate Division in this proceeding dated and entered June 12,



-iggf (uJune L2 order), and the decislon and order dated and

entered October 18, 1990 (zoctober 18 Order'), copies of which

are annexed hereto as Exhibits 2 and 3 t respectively.

2. In its october 18 Order, the Second Department',

without an evidentiary hearing or findings or statement of

reasons, ordered Ms. Sassower, a distinguished attorney of 35

years standing, "Lo be examined by a qualified medical expert, to

be arranged for by the chief Counsel for the Grievance Committee

for the Ninth Judicial District [hereinafter "Committee'] to
determine whether [Ms. sassower] is incapacitated from continuing

to practice law. " In its June L2 Order, the court, without an

evidentiary hearing or findings or reasons, denied Ms. Sassower,s

motion to vacate the October 18 Order, and on June 14, the court,
without an evidentiary hearing and without opinion or statement

of findings or reasons, indefinitely, immediately, and uncondi-

tionally suspended Ms. Sassower from the practice of }aw.

3. This case presents an extraordinary and unfortunate
situation that cries out for this Court's review in the interests
of substantiar justice. rt involves accusations of the most

sensitive and damaging nature imaginabre that an attorney is
mentally incapacitated from practicing law -- which demand care-
ful and strict adherence to the salutory principles set down by

this court and the provisions of the rures of the Apperlate
Division, Second Department establishing meaningful safeguards in
such proceedings. The proceedings be1ow, however, have been

fundamentally frawed from their inception and throughout by

numerous significant procedural and substantive errors created by
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'the actions of an aggressive and overzealous prosecutor. The

result has been to destroy for no apparent reason the legal

career of Ms. Sassower, a prominent and respected long-tine

leader of the New York Bar. Ms. Sassower has not engaged in'any

misconduct that immediatelv or otherwise threatens the public

interest that could possibly justify her immediate and indefinite

suspension without an evidentiary hearing. See Matter of

Padilla, 67 N.Y.2d 434, 447 ' 503 N.Y.S.2d 548, 554 (1986), 22

NyCRR S 691.4(1)(1). Ms. Sassower, through counsel retained for

that purpose, has merely asserted her IegaI rights under the

Judiciary Law, sought compllance with the Second Department's own

rules, and raised legitinate concerns as to the manner in which

the Grievance Comnittee was implementing the Appellate Division's

october 18, 1990 order, which has put her in no better positlon
than if she had sirnply wholly ignored or deliberately flouted the

October 18 Order and the Committee. The decision of the Second

Department to impose the extraordinarily harsh punishment of

immediate and indefinite suspension is totally unjustified and

demands reversal

4. The questions of law presented are both novel, of
considerable public importance (not only to members of the Bar),

and the reasoning of the court below conflicts with prior deei-

sions of this Court and other Appellate Divisions. Moreover,

review by this Court is essential in the interests of substantial
justice to prevent the destruction of an outstanding legal
career, without any factual or legal basis, and to make clear
that the Grievance Committee and the Appellate Divisions must
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'adhere to their own rules and procedures established to prevent

unjustified severe punishment of attorneys, with all the harm

that imposes on the attorneys and their clients.
gUESIIONS PRESENTED rOR REVTEW

5. a) Whether, conslstent with due process, dh

attorney may be lmmediately and indefinitely suspended from'the
practice of law without evidence or any flndings or statement of
reasons that the attorney is guilty of serious professional mis-

conduct immedlately threatenlng the public interest, without any

evidentiary hearing, and where the attorney has made substantial
efforts to cooperate with the Committee and has pending a motion

to vacate the order with which the attorney has alregedly not
compl ied;

b) Whether the Appellate Divisionrs October 18

order was a lawful order, in that:
(i) it ordered the attorney to be examined by a

singre qualified medicar expert, to be chosen at the sore and

unfettered discreti-on of the Grievance committeers own chief
Counsel;

(ii) the entire proceeding was void ab initio, dS

it was unlawfully commenced in violation of the Judiciary Law and

the Second Departmentrs ohrn rules;
(lii) the proceeding was based entirely on

improperly obtained confidential court records and otherwise
lacked a proper evidentiary basis; and
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(iv) the court lacked personal jurisdiction over

Ms. Sassower because the May 8, 1990 Order to Show Cause initiat-

ing this proceeding was improperly served on Ms. Sassower,

pursuant to Jud. Law S 90(6).

PROCEDURAL AND FACTUAIJ HISIORY

5. cary Casella, Chief Counsel for the Grievance Com-

mittee for the Ninth Judicial District purported to commence this
proceeding on May 8, L99O by Order to Show Cause and by his
affirmation. Exhibit A to the Record, filed herewith (hereinaf-

ter "R. Ex. _ol . In his rnoving papers, Mr. Casella purported

to invoke section 691.1-3(b) (1) of the New York Rules of Court (22

NYCRR S 69L.13(b) (\)y, and sought to have the Second Department

determine whether Ms. Sassower is incapacitated from continuing

to practice 1aw by reason of mental infirmity or illness, and

suspend Ms. Sassower immediatelv pending that determination.

These papers were not properly served on Ms. Sassower as mandated

by Jud. Law 5 90(6), (10).

U Section 69L.r.3 (b) (r.) provides in pertinent part:
(b) ProceedLng to Determine Alleged IncapacLty
and EuspensLon upon Buch DetermLnatLon.

(1) . Whenever a committee_ appointed pursuant
to section 691.4(a) oE-EnIE part-snatt pelition
this court to determine whether a@
incapacitated from continuing to practice 1aw by
reason of mental infirmity or illness or because
of addiction to drugs or intoxicants, this eourt
may take or direct such actj-on as it deems
necessary or proper to determine whether the
attorney is so incapacitated, including exami-
nation of the attorney by such qualified medical
experts as the court shal1 designate.

(Emphasis added).
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' 7. Mr. Casella acted sua sponte and gave Ms. Sassower

no prior notice of his intent to seek such relief. Ms. Sassohler

was never asked or given any opportunity to respond to the alle-

gations itself an aberrant departure fron the standard prac-

tice of the Committee in Mr. Caselta's papers prior to the

commencement of this proceeding.

8. Section 691.13(b) (1) clearly requires that a

proceeding to determine incapacity be brought by petition by the

orderCommittee. Nonetheless, this proceeding was brought on by

to show cause and affirmation, and the record is clear that the

Committee never properly and formally voted to institute a pro-

ceeding, and the Appellate Division never authorized the

Committee or its Chief Counsel to petition to deternine whether

Ms. Sassower is incapacitated

9. At the time this proceeding sras commenced, a who1ly

unrelated petition alleging two acts of misconduct brought by the

Committee agaJ-nst Ms. Sassower was pending in the Second Depart-

ment. At no time in that proceeding has Ms. Sassower claimed or

relied upon any mental incapacity as a defense to or to delay

that proceeding, pursuant to section 691.13(c) (f-).

10. I'tr. Casella's order to show cause and affirmation
were based exclusively on: a) the testimony of Ms. Sassowerrs

personal doctor, which was compelled on April 13, 1990, over Ms.

Sassower's objection, by Justice Samue1 G. Fredman, in her

absence, in an unrelated matrimonial action Breslaw v.

Breslaw, Index No. 22587/86 (Sup. Ct. Westchester Co. ) to which

Ms. sassower was neither a party nor attorney to a party at that
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tLnre -- b) an affLrmation by her doctor made a part of

in Breslaw; and c) the courtrs April 20, 1990 decLsion

l-n Breslaw. R. Ex. A (Exhiblts A, B, C thereto).

record

order

11. In that April 20 decision, Justice Fredman held

that Ms. Sassovrer 'is presently capable of completing the con-

tempt proceeding" and that she 'does understand the nature of the

actj.on and is quite capable, physicatly and mentally, of defend.-

ing her position to its conclusion, if she chooses to do so.' R.

Ex. A (Exhibit C thereto at 1-2).

Lz. Counsel for the Grievance Committee thereafter

obtained the doctor's affirmation and a transcript of his testi-

mony, without notice to Ms. sassovrer or formal application,

although aII court records, including transcripts, in Breslaw are

confidential pursuant to Domestic Relations Law S 235. Counsel

for the Committee has refused to disclose how or from whom he

obtained the confidential records. Appell-ant is unaware of any

order from the Second Department or Justice Fredman authorizing

transmittal of the transcript, affirmation or decision.

13. Although the court in Breslaw explicitly deter-

mined that Ms. Sassower was fully competent to participate in the

proceedings before hin, and the doctor's affirmation stated only

that as of April 10, 1990, he felt Ms. sassower should not parti-

cipate in stressful court matters in which she was personally

involved for 60 davs, R. Ex. A (Exhibit A), Mr. Casel1a, on the

identical record, nevertheless sought to have Ms. Sassower

irnrnediatelv suspended from the practice of law and to have the

the
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court determine her mental capacity. No other evidence than that
before Justj-ce Fredman was submitted in support of the order to
Show Cause.

L4. On June 7, 199L, Ms, Sassower cross-moved to -dis-
miss this proceeding on grounds, inter alia, that the court had

no subject matter jurisdictionr ds the proceeding was not proper-

Iy authorized by the Cornmittee; that, in light of the courtrs
decision in Breslaw, there was no evidentiary basis to institute
a proceeding under section 69L.f-3(b) (1); the confidential records

in Breslaw h,ere obtained improperly; that the proceeding was part
of a pattern of misconduct and selective enforcement by the
Committee and/or Mr. Casella against Ms. Sassower and that she

was entitled to a hearing on this issue; and that, the court
lacked personar jurisdiction because of improper service. R. Ex.

B; see arso R. Ex. D (Reply Affidavit of Ms. sassower, dated June

25, 199O) .

L5. In an affirmation in opposition to the cross-
motion, dated June !3, l-990, Mr. caselra responded to the objec-
tion to the improper institution of the p.roceeding by asserting
only that "counsel to the Grievance Committee for the Ninth Judi-
ciar District was given furl authority to bring on the subject
Order to Show Cause.r, R. Ex. C (Casella Aff . in Opp. { 4). He

did not refer to any vote, reportr or petition of the committee,
or any order of the court authorizing him to bring this
proceeding.
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16. By order entered October 18, 1990, over six months

after her doctor had stated that Ms. Sassower needed a 6o-dav

adjournment, and without any hearing, the Second Department:

ORDERED that the respondent is directed
to be examined by a qualified medical
expert, to be arranged for by Chief Counsel
for the Gri-evance Committee for the Ninth
Judicial District, to determine whether. the
respondent is incapacitated from continuingr
to practice law pursuant to Sec
6e1.13(b) (1)

Exhibit 3 (emph.asis added). The court also denied Ms. Sassower's

cross-motion to dismiss the proceeding. ],d.?/ The court,s dele-
gation of the selection of a single medical expert to Mr

Casella, the prosecutor in this matter, was in clear disregard of
section 691.L3(b) (1), which explicitly provides for ,rexamination

of the attorney by such qualified medical experts as

shall designate" (emphasis added).

this court

L7. The Order vras not served on Ms. Sassower's counsel

EIi Vigliano, Esq for over five weeks, until November 26,

1990. Exhibit 3. And not until December tg, l_990 did ltr.
casella, by letter dated December L7, notify Mr. vigriano of the
name of the physician and instruct him to make arrangements for
the medical examination. In that letter, sent over seven months

after Mr. casella's order to show cause, Mr. caserra gave Mr.

Viqliano only two weeks, until December 31, L99O -- i.e.,. during

?/ The october 19 order mistakenry stated that it denied Ms.
sassower's cross-motion to dismlss ,,the underlying disciplinaryproceeding". Ex. 3. However, there is no underlying disci-plinary proceeding. Rather, there was, as noEEElE-ilhol1y
separate and unrelated petition instituted by the Comnittee in
February 1990. Ms. Sassower's cross-motion was not directed atthat petition,.but.only at the May I order to Show Cause seekinga medical examination, and immediate suspension.
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-the Christmas and New Year holidays -- to umake prompt arrange-

ments, for a medical examination with Mr. Casella's designated

expert, a Dr. Mark Scher. R. Ex. E (Exhibit C, thereto).

18. Mr. Vigliano informed Mr. Casella on January-3,

1991, that he had reached Dr. Scher on December 31, and that Mr.

Vigliano was waiting for the doctor to provide available appoint-

ment dates. R. Ex. E (Casella Aff. I 8). Neither Mr. Casella

nor Dr. Scher inforrned Mr. Vigliano that Dr. Scher is also a

lawyer, a fact which Mr. Casella recently revealed. Letter of

David B. Goldstein to Gary Casella, dated July 15, l-991- (copy

annexed hereto as Exhibit 5). Dr. Scher refused to discuss any

matters with Mr. Vigliano other than the time and place of an

appointment, refused to supply him with his credentials, and

asserted to Mr. Vigll-ano that he worked for the Grievance

Committee. R. Ex. F (Vigliano Aff. T 14).

L9. After this discussion with Dr. Scher on or about

January 7, 1991, ME. Vigliano concluded that Dr. Scher did not

perceive himself as a neutral court-appointed medical expert, and

he counselled Ms. Sassower not to subject herself to his examina-

tion without appropriate safeguards. R. Ex. F' (Vlgliano Aff. I
14), R. Ex. J (Vigliano Aff. I 18). By letter faxed to Mr.

CaseIIa on January 10, Mr. Vigliano objected, j-nter alia, to the

absence of anv safeguards for Ms. Sassower, particularly in light
of Dr. Scher's selection by Mr. Casella, to the impropriety of
the court's delegation of that selection to him, and to the
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-jurisdictional defects l-n the proceedi.g, and he urged Mr.

Casella to consent to the vacation of the October 18 Order.

Ex. F. (Exhibit B) .

20. By letter dated January 15, 1991, received by Mr.

Vigliano on January 18, Mr. Casella summarily disnissed Mr.

Vigliano's well-founded objections, accused Mr. Vigliano of

'attempting to delay and obstruct the Appellate Divisionrs
orderr" and informed hin that unless he made arrangements with
Dr. scher by January 23, 1990, MF. casella wourd move to suspend

Ms. Sassower immediately for "failure to cooperate and to cornply

with the courtrs order.r, R. Ex. E (Exhibit E) . Mr. Casella
thereafter refused Mr. vigrianors request for a vorunt,ary stay
pending judicial review of the apprication. R. Ex. p (vigriano
Aff. { 16). When Mr. Vigliano thereafter informed Mr. Casella
that he intended to move to vacate the october 1g order, Mr.

Casella extended his deadline one day to January 24. Given that
neither Mr. Casella nor the court displayed any urgency for seven

months after this proceeding was commenced, Mr. casellars sudden

demands upon Mr. vigliano $rere unreasonable and improper.

2L- As the record shows, Mr. Vigrlano acted expedi-
tiously to seek a stay in conjunction with judicial review, and

kept Mr. Casella apprised of his actions and intentions through-
out. R. Ex. J. (vigriano Aff . r{ 27-40') . At no time, however,

did Mr. casella inform Mr. vigliano that he would move to suspend

Ms. sassower before Mr. vigliano had an opportunity to seek a
stay of the october t-8 order. rd. (viqriano Aff . ! 33). Never-
thelessr oD January 2s, LggL, Mr. casella submitted his order to

R.
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-shot cause to have Ms. Sassower immediately suspended for an

'i.ndefinite periodu pursuant to section 691.4(I) (1) (i) for uher

failure to comply with an Order of this Courtu and ufor her

failure to cooperate with petitioner.,, R. Ex. E (Order to Sh-ow

Cause I \.y The only 'evidence, submitted in support of this
motion was the above-stated facts. Mr. Casella made no assertion

and produced no evidence that Ms. Sassower's conduct constituted

"professional misconduct imrnediately threatening the pubtic
interest," as required by section 69L.4(1) (1). See R. Ex. E.

22. The next day, oD January 29, Ms. Sassower, through
her attorney, moved by order to Show eause to vacate the october
l-B order on the grounds, inter alia, that the proceeding was not
properly instituted by the committee, that only the eourt may

designate medicar experts pursuant to section 691.13(b) (1), and

that this po$rer could not be delegated to the prosecuting attor-
ney. The order to show cause also sought to stay the Committee

from further proceedings and to discipline Mr. casella for
abusive tactics documented in Mr. viglianors affirmation. R. Ex.

F.

23- on February 5, r.99r-, Mr. caselra cross-moved for
sanctions and costs against Mr. vigliano, apparently for filing
the motion to vacate the courtrs october l_g order and as part of
a further attempt to intimidate Ms. sassower and her attorney

Y rhe order
fact presented
(viqliano Af f .

to show cause
to the court
I 41).

is dated January 25, but it was in
and executed on January 28. R. Ex.
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-into abandoning their legal objections to this proceeding,

although Mr. CaseLlars papers are extremely vague as to the basis

for this motion. R. Ex. H.

24. Mr. Vigliano submitted extensive factual rebuttal

and a Memorandum of Law in support of hls Order to Show Cause in

opposition to Mr. Casella's Order. R. Ex. I, J, L' M. By con-

trast, ME. Casella's papers never included any assertion nor

provided any evidence that Ms. Sassower had engaged in "profes-
sional misconduct immediately threatening the public interest.'

See R. Ex. G, H, K.

25. Four months later, by Decision and order dated and

entered on June A2, 1991, the Second Department denied, without

opinion, MS. Sassower's motion to vacate the October L8 Order and

to discipline Mr. Casella. Exhibit 2. The Court also denied Mr.

Casella's motion to J.rnpose sanctions on Mr. vigliano, but

provided for uleave to renew upon a showing of continued frivo-

lous conduct.u R. Ex. o.

26. A scant two days later, oD June L4, 1991, the

court

Ordered that the respondent, Doris L. Sassower,
pursuant to Section 691.4(1). is immediately

. suspended from the practice of law in the State of
New York, until the further order of this court.

Exhibit 1. The court nowhere made any legal or factual f.indings,

nor did it state any reasons for its decisionr ds expllcitly
required by section 691.4(1)(L), (2), but by citlng to that
subsection, the Order obviously suspended Ms. Sassower for
alleged misconduct, not because of any alleged mental incapacity.
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-ihe Order is not a conditional or interim order that relates in

any way to the happening of any other event. This Order, with

notice of entry, was personally served on Ms. Sasso$'er on June

]-9, 1991.

27. on June 20, ]-991, MS. Sassower moved by order to

Show cause for a stay and to vacate the June L4 Order, which was

in the nature of a motion to reargue. Mr. Casella filed an

affirmation in opposition dated June 2L, l-991. That motion was

denied without opinion on July 15, L99L, although the Order has

not yet been served on Ms. Sassosrer.

ITItdEI,INESg

28. On JuIy !9, appellant served on the committee by

hand the instant motion for leave to appeal (proof of service is

annexed hereto). Therefore this appeal is timely, as the June L4

Order, with notice of entry, $/aS personally served on June 19,

l-991, within thirty days of the service of this motion. The

timely appeal of the final June L4 Order also brings up for this

Court's review the June t2 Order and the October 18 Order. CPLR

S 5s0L (a) (1) .

i,URISDICTION

29. This Court has jurisdiction of this motion and

proposed appeal pursuant to CPLR S 5602(a) (1) (i). The June L4

Order is a final, appealable order that finally determines all

the issues in the proceeding by immediately and indefinitely

suspending Ms. Sassower from the practice of law, and which does

not require or provide for any further act on her part, nor does

it contemplate any further proceedings before the Second Depart-
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ment. Nor is the order conditional in any way -- 9-4', that the

suspension will be lifted upon undergoing a medical exam, or upon

a determination by the court that she is not incapacitated, of

upon completion of the unrelated pending discipllnary proceecling.

The order is as final as any other suspension order that finally

determines a disciplinary proceeding, whether denoted as an

,rindefinite' suspension or a suspension for a definite term

When there is nothing more for any party or the court to do, ES

here, the order ls final. See CPLR S 5611.

30. In Matter of Padilla, 65 N-Y.2d 848, 493 N.Y.S'2d

306 (L985), this Court granted leave to appeal to the suspended

attorney, even though the suspension order was explicitly stated

to be an interim suspension effective only until the completion

of pending disciplinary proceedings and further court order

thereafter. See Matter of Padilla, 67 N.Y.2d 434, 445, 503

N.Y.S.2d 548, 552 (1986). Here, of course, the court below did

not even conditlon the suspension on completion of the unrelated

disciplinary proceeding. Thus, because the interim suspension in

Padilla was a final order, the unconditional suspension order

here is clearly final
3L. Any possible claim that the June 14 Order is some-

how nonfinal, because of the existence of a wholly unrelated

disciplinary proceeding, is directly refuted not only by Padilla,

but by Mr. Casella's own letter, dated June 2L, 1991, to the Hon.

Max H. Galfunt, the Referee in the unrelated disciplinary matter,

which states that Ms. Sassower's suspension "will result in the

disciplinary proceeding continuing to be held in abeyance." A
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Copy is annexed hereto as Exhibit 4. A party obviously cannot

ctaim that an order is nonfinal by its purported connection to a

future event, and then indefinitely prevent that event from

occurring.

32. In any event, neither Mr. casella',s initial May 8,

1991 Order to Show Cause nor his ,fanuary 28, 1991 Order to Show

Cause purport,ed to rely in any way on the unrelated disciplinary

matter as a basis either for the suspension or the medical exam.

Nor did the court's order suspend Ms. Sassower for any reason

connected to the unrelated disciplinary proceeding.U Indeed, ds

set forth, infra, Point IIB, the relief sought pursuant to

section 69L.13(b)(f-) must be by separate proceeding commenced by

petition.
33. Moreover, the order is not nonfinal merely because

the suspensJ-on is indefinite. The court has provided Ms.

Sassower with no opportunity to cure her alleged violation and

has provided no time in which she must perform some act. Indeed,

Mr. Casella has informed the undersigned that even if Us.

Sassower submitted to a psychiatric exam and there was a finding
of no mental incapacity, his position is that she should rernain

suspended because she purportedly failed to comply with the

october l-8 Order. Exhibit 5. Thus, there is no basis for any

!/ The mere fact that a court clerk in the Appellate Division
apparently gave this matter and the unrelated disciplinary
petition the same docket number, whether for the court's
convenience, or in error, cannot alter the fact that the Petition
instituted in February, L990, based on two unrelated alleged acts
of misconduct is wholly separate from this proceeding, which was
instituted (albeit improperly) pursuant to section 691.L3(b) (1),
based on Ms. Sassower's purported mental incapacity.
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,issumption that the June 1-4 order ls some sort of temporary sus-

pension that will be automatically lifted when Ms. Sasso$'er

undergoes and "passes' a medical exam. And even if that were the

case, such an interim suspension would be final pursuant to--

Padilla.

34. Thus, the June L4 Order is a final order within

the meaning of cPLR SS 56O2(a) (1) (i), 5511, and review of this

Order brings up for this Court's review the October 18 and June

1"2 Orders. CPLR S 5501(a) (1).

ARGU!,IENT

I. THE INDEFINIIIE, II{I'IEDIATE, UNCONDITIONAIJ
SUSPENSrON, WrtrHOUS ANY HEARING AND
WITHOUT EVIDENCE OR FINDINGS OF
UISCONDUCT II.il'iEDIATEITY trHREATENING lfHE
PUBL,IC INTERESI, UERITS lrHI8 COURT'8 REVIEI9

35. In Padilla, *PE, this Court held that the

Appellate Divisions have the authority to suspend attorneys

pending resolution of disciplinary proceedings "when serious

misconduct is admitted or uncontroverted and the public interest

is threatened." 67 N.Y.2d at 447, 5o3 N.Y.S.2d at 554 (ernphasis

added). This Court held that in "both cases before us, appel-

lants' documented misconduct posed an immedlate threat to the

public interest", and that 'Ii]n these narrow circumstances, the

Appellate Division has the power to suspend attorneys although

disciplinary charges rernain pending against them. .

(emphasis added).

,, rd.

36. This Court contrasted the situati-on in Padilta

with Matter of Nuev, 6L N.Y.2d 5L3, 474 N.Y.S.2d 7L4 (1984),

cert. denied, 47o U.s. 1007 (L985), in which "the attorney
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'disputed all charges of misconductr' and 'It]he Appellate

Division order of suspension recj-ted no basis on which a finding

of misconduct night have been predicated.' Padilla, 6? N'Y'2d at

448, 503 N.Y.S.2d at 554. In Nuey, this Court held, 'A findincl

by the court that an attorney 'is guilty' of professional

misconduct . is a prerequisite to interference with the

attorneyrs right to practice his or her profession." 6l N.Y.2d at

5t-5, 474 N.Y.S.2d at 7]5 (emphasis added). Here, the second

Department has made no such requLsite flnding. This Court also

noted that "Ii]n. the normal progress of attorney discipLinary

matters the court's determination of guilt of the offending

lawyer occurs only after the findings rendered by a panel or

referee have been confirmedru id. at 5L6, 474 N.Y.S.2d at 715,

i.e., onlv after an evidentiary hearing, is required by Jud. Law

S 9o(5) ("Before an attorney . is suspended . he must be

allowed an opportunity of being heard in his defense"). Here, of

course, Do such hearing was afforded to Ms. Sassower.

37. This case simply does not faII into the "narro$,

circumstances" required by Padilla in which there i= gdrnille$ ot

uncontroverted evidence of serious misconduct that poses an

immediate threat to the public interest so as to justify an

immediate and indefinite suspension without awaiting the conclu-

sion of a hearing. The suspension on this flinsy record and

without any evidentiary hearing conflicts with thls Court's deci-

sions in Nuey and Padilla, violates Jud. LaL, S 90(6) and Ms.
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-ia==owerrs most basic rights to due process under the United

States and New York Constitutions, and ralses an issue of

substantial Public imPortance-

38. Ms. Sassower was lmmediately and indefinitely'

suspended pursuant to 22 NYcRR S 691.4(I)(1)(i), which was added

to the Second Departmentrs rules after Padilla and was clearly an

attempt to codify that decision. This subsection provides that

an attorney who is the subject of an investigation or a disci-

plinary proceeding may be suspended 'upon a findinq that the

attorney is guilty of professional misconduct immediately

threatening the public interest" (emphasis added). Section

69L.f-3(1) (2) provides that the "court shall briefly state its

reasons for the order of suspension" (ernphasis added).

39. In this case, the Comrnittee made no allegation,

nor adduced any evidence that Ms. Sassower had engaged in any

seriousmisconductimmedia@thepub1icinterest.
The Committee asserted only that Ms. Sassower had not submitted

to the psychiatric exam as of January 25,1991, and that this

allegedly constituted failure to obey a court order or cooperate

with the Committee. This showing fal1s far short of the demand-

ing standard established by this Court in Padilla. Indeed, that

the court took over five months to issue its October l-8 order,

that Mr. Casella took no actlon for two months thereafter even to

designate the doctor for the medical exam, and that the court

took another four months to issue its orders denying Ms.
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-Sassowerrs motion to vacate the October 18 Order and suspending

Ms. Sasso$rer, strongly negates, without morer dIrY poss|ble

inference of such serlous, threatening misconduct.

40. As noted, in its ilune 14 order, the court nowhere

stated its reasonsr ds required by section 691.4(f)(2), nor did

it make any finding of professional misconduct immediately

threateninq the public interest, ds required by section

69L.4(1) (f-). In the absence of these mandatory findings and

reasons, stated on the record, there is no lawful basis for the

suspension. Moreover, Ms. Sassower, ds in Nuey, strongly con-

troverted Mr. Casella's allegations of deliberate intent to delay

and documented them as wholIy unfounded, but was given no

evidentiary hearing on this issue.

4L. The explicit requirement that the Appellate

Division make findings and state its reasons serves the dual

purpose of focusing that court on the standards that must be met

before it takes the devastating decision to suspend an attorneY,

and also of enabling this Court to review that decision to deter-

mine the legal basis for the lower court's action. See Padilla,

67 N.Y.2d at 448, so3 N.Y.S.2d at 554; Mattel pE-!gu{!, 63 N.Y.2d

331, 33g, 482 N.Y.S.2d 431, 435 (L984, *r"a adhere-

nce to procedural requirements when Appellate Division issues

orders in disciplinary mattersr so that "this court may meaning-

fully review the basis of the Appel}ate Division's exercise of

discretion"). While this Court in Padilla stated that the

Appellate Division's failure "to articulate the reasons for the

suspension' was not fatal in that case (where the evidence of
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-guilt was overwhelming and there !'rere no rules ln place at that

time governing immediate suspensions), that rationale has no

application here, where the record shows no evidence of serious

misconduct innediately threatening the public interest, such'

allegations have been seriously controverted, and there is an

explicit rule requiring findings and a statement of reasons' See

Nuey, 61 N.Y.2d at 515, 474 N.Y.S.2d at 715. As in Dondi, the

court below acted improperty in ignoring the mandatory require-

ments of section 691.a(1), which are clearly intended to protect

attorneys from inmediate suspension without the uncontroverted or

admitted showing of serious misconduct requlred by Padilla.

Because disciplinary proceedings "are adversary proceedings of a

quasi-crininal naturer'ry In Re Ruffalo, 390 U.S. 544, 551

(1968), the Committee and the Second Department are obllgated to

follow carefully those procedures designed to protect attorneys

from unfair or improper discipline. See Padilla, 67 N.Y.2d at

448, 5O3 N.Y.S.2d at 554.

42. Moreover, in this case, the court could not have

made the necessary findings, even had it complled with the man-

dates of section 691.4 (1) (1) (2) . First, the court could not

possibly have made a finding of failure to cooperate with the

Committee sufficient to find serious misconduct and an immediate

threat to the public interest. The entire period from Mr'.

CaseIIa,s notice to Vigliano to arrange for a medical exam until

Mr. Casella submitted his motion to suspend for failure to
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-cooperate was only 37 days from December 19, 1990 to January

25r 1991- -- which period included the Christmas and New Year

holidays, and during much of which Dr. scher hras unavailable.

43. Mr. Vigliano attempted to cooperate throughout

this brief period, during which Mr. Casella consistently set

unreasonably short deadlines. As set forth, SE3, 11 L8'22, Mr'

Vigliano had several conversations with Mr. Casella and Dr. Scher

and repeatedly attempted to work out problems he perceived in the

courtrs October 18 Order and in the absence of any protections

for Ms. Sassower in the medical exam. After Mr. Casella sum-

nariJ-y rejected every reasonable, good faith request, Mf.

Vigliano reguested a stay from Mr. Casella while the issues were

presented to the court. Mr. Casella again flatly refused. The

parties then brought on their respectlve orders to show cause one

day apart in late January, in which Mr. Casella sought to suspend

Ms. Sassower immediatelY, and Mr. Vigliano sought to vacate the

court's october l-8 order.

44. That these above-stated efforts by Mr. Vigliano

could be construed as so serious a failure by ffs. Sassower to

cooperate with the Grievance Committee as to justify her

immediate suspension l-s a frightening prospect. No attorney

would dare challenge the whims or caprice of Grlevance Comrnittee

counsel through negotiation and if necessary, appropriate

motions if the consequence is to be imrnediate suspension of

his client. This Court must not tolerate such unbridled power in

discipli-nary committee counsel, and indeed, in Padilla this Court

made clear that it would not.
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' 45. Of course, since the court made no findings and

stated no reasons for its action it is impossible to tel} if it

suspended Ms. Sassower based on a failure to cooperate with the

Committee. In the absence of any findings or evidence to the

contrary, or any hearings on this issue, it must be assuned that

Ms. Sassower and her attorney acted in utmost good faith in

tryi-ng to negotiate with ttr. Casella and in then expeditiously

bringing their objections to the Appel-Iate Division by proper

motion.

46. Moreover, the cases in whieh attorneys were

immediately suspended for failure to cooperate involve either

other extremely serious rnisconduct and/or repeated, flagrant

noncooperation over extended periods of time -- not a five-week

period of extensive cooperatlon and good faith efforts at negoti-

atj-on, followed by an expeditious and good faith motion to the

court. see, €.ct.r Padilla, 67 N.Y.2d at 448 (Padilla's "obstruc-
tionism demonstrated over a period of more than a year"); Matter

of Elkin, L52 A.D.2d 2L3, 548 N.Y.S.2d l-68, 169 (l-st Dept. 1989)

(attorney completely.ignored "repeated requests by letter, certi-

fied mail and telephone" and several subpoenas over several month

period; court finds conduct to be "shockingly obvious, deliberate

and willful attempts to derail the DDC investigation'); Matter of

Perrv, L56 A.D.2d 1, 553 N.Y.S.2d 758, 759 (lst Dept. L990)

(attorney's "conduct in wilfully and intentionally refusing to

anslrer eleven pending complaints and otherwise cooperate with the

DDC is inexcusable"); Matter of Baltimore, 128 A.D.2d 323, 515
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ir. V. S . 2d 789 ( lst Dept. 1987 ) ;. Matter of Binq, 119 A. D. 2d 249 ,

506 N.Y.S.2d 694 (lst Dept. 1986), Matter of Spiecrelman, 1L6

A.D.2d, 346, 5O1 N.Y.S.2d 345 (lst Dept. 1986).

47. The other alleged basis for Mr. casella',s motion

for immediate suspension was a purported failure zto comply with

any 1awful demand of Ithe Appeltate DivisioDJr' which inmediately

threatened the public interest. 22 NYCRR S 691.4(1) (1) (i)

(emphasis added).

48. Assuming for the moment that the court's October

L8 Order that Ms. Sassower be examined by a doctor selected by

the chief prosecuting attorney for the Grievance Committee was

lawful, there was no serious mlsconduct such that an immediate

suspension was justified. After good faith efforts at negotia-

tion failed, ME. Vigliano and Ms. Sassower acted with complete

propriety in obtaining a sJ-gned Order to Show Cause on January

29, l-991, to vacate the court's October 18 Order. If the court

suspended Ms. Sassower for her purported noncompliance during the

extraordinarily brief period between the failure of negotiations

and January 29, there is simply no conceivable factual or 1ega1

basis for such a harsh and irrational result. See Padilla, 67

N.Y.2d at 447-49. of course, because the court gave no reasons,

this Court has no way of knowing just what it found Ms. Sassower

to have done that so immediately threatened the public interest.

49. From January 29 until June L2, 1991, MS. Sassower

had a proper motion pending in the Second Department to vacate

the court's order. During this period, Mr. Casella, who had been

ordered to arrange for the exam, made no further inquiries or
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'imrnediate and Lndefinlte suspension by the express terms of

section 691.4(1) (1) (i), which requires that there be

noncompliance with a 'Iawful" order.

II. THE OCTOBER 18 ORDER WAg NOT
A LAWFUIJ ORDER WITHIN TIIE
uEANTNG OF 8ECTrON 6e1.{(1} (1} (i)

51. The October L8 order is defective in several

important respects, including: 1) the court below had no author-

ity to delegate the choice of medical experts to the Committee's

own eounsel; 2l this proceeding is void ab initio as it was not

properly instituted by the Committeei and 3) the evidence upon

which the proceeding was based was improperly derived from confi-

dential court files without lega1 authorization for their use.

These issues rnerit this Court's review in the interests of sub-

stantial justice, and they are of great public importance and

conflict with prior decisions of this Court and other Appellate

Divisions.

A. The order ImProperly Delegated
the SeIection of the Medical
Expert to the CommLtteers own Attorney

52. The Appellate Division rules providing for the

suspension of attorneys for mental incapacity attempt to strike a

delicate balance between the need to protect the public and the

rights of attorneys to procedural and substantive protections so

that their careers and reputations are not ruined without proper

cause and due process.

53. fn the Second Department, when the Committee peti-

tions the court to determine whether an attorney is incapacita-

ted, ,,this court may take or direct such action as it deems nec-
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-essary or proper to determine whether the attorney is so lncapa-

citated, including examination of the attorney by such qualified

medical experts as this court shall 9ggignate.' 22 NYCRR S

6e1.L3(b) (r-) (emphasis added) i see also id. S 603.15(b) (1) {First

Department); id. S 806.10(a) (Third Department)i ld. S 1022.23(b)

(Fourth Department). While the Appel-late Divisions have broad

discretion to determine incapacity, such discretion may not be

exercised arbitrarily, and the eourts must adhere to the explicit

requirement that the court shall designate the medl-cat experts.

Such a requirement is obviously intended to insure the appoint-

ment of neutral, independent experts unbeholden to the CommLttee

or its counsel.

54. Here, the Appellate Division improperly delegated

to the Chief Counsel of the Grievance Committee i.e., the very

attorney that had brought on the proceeding seeking to have Ms.

Sassower suspended as mentally incompetent to choose, in his

unfettered diseretion, a single "gualified medical expertz.

55. Such an order is unlawful under both the explicit

terms of section 69L.f-3(b) (f.) and as a matter of fundamental

fairness. Indeed, it is difficult to imagine a less fair pro-

ceeding than one in which one's professional career depends

entirely on the op'inion of one psychiatrist chosen by the

prosecutor, who has already stated his intent and goal of trying
to suspend the attorney.

55. Certainly the rule cannot be construed to permit

the selection to be in the sole discretion of the Committee's

chief prosecuting counsel, particularly after counsel has already
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itatea his position that the attorney should be suspended for

medical incapacity without any medical exam. R. Ex. A (CaseIIa

Aff., final para. ) . The delegation by the Second Department here

is diametrically at odds with the decisions of other appellate

courts. See Matter of Rochlln, lOO A.D.2d 263, 474 N.Y'S'2d L4,

16 (1st Dept. 1984) (attorney "wi}I be permitted to choose an

independent psychlatrist from a list provided by counsel for the

Committee') (emphasis added)i Matter of Anonymous, 2L A.D.2d 48,

50 (1st Dept. Lg64) (examination by physician selected by Medical

Report Office, Supreme Court, New York County).

57. Nor can there be any pretense that Mr. casella is

a neutral, detachedr or disinterested party. The papers below

amply and indisputably demonstrate that Mr. Casella acted

throughout these proceedings as a zealous and aggressive advocate

for the position that Ms. Sassower ls mentally incompetent and

must be immediately suspended. The court's order delegating to

this zealous advocate the sole authority to choose the medical

expert who will effectively determine Ms. Sassosrer's professional

future is akin to placing the fox in charge of the hen house.

58. Not surprisingly, the substantial problems that

can be expected to arise when an interested adverse attorney is

delegated this extraordinary authority occurred here. Thus, it

is undisputed that: 1) Mr. CaseIIa chose a psychiatrist who is

also an attornev as his expert, and who would therefore bring his

own well-formed opinions and attitudes toward appropriate attor-

ney behavior unrelated to his psychiatric expertise; 2l Mr.

Casella did not disclose to Ms. Sassower or her attorney that Dr.
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Scher liras an attorney until after her suspensJ.on, and then only

after Dr. Scher refused to answer a direct lnguiry as to whether

he is an attorney; 3) Dr. Scher informed Ms. Sassower that he

works for the Grievance Committee and that he would not provlde a

copy of his report to her or her counsel; 4) Mr. Casella and Dr.

Scher have refused to provide Ms. Sassower or her attorneys with

Dr. scher's resume or curriculum vitae; and 5) Mr' casella and

Dr. Sctrer have refused to permit an attorney to be present at her

exam despite explicit Second Department authority to the con-

trary. See Ponce v. Health Insurance PIan of Greater New York,

1oo A. D. 2d s63 , 475 N. Y. s . 2d Lo2 , l-03 ( 2d Dept. 1984 ) (party 'is
entitled to be examined in the presence of her attorney. . . hle

warn respondents and their phvsicians against repeating their

earlier attempt to exclude them") (emphasis added); Nalbandian v.

Nalbandian, L17 A.D.2d 657 | 498 N.Y.S.2d 394, 395 (2d Dept.

1986). See Exhibit 5, annexed hereto.

59 . Furthermore, section 69:-".13 (b) ( f-) provides f or the

designatj-on of "medical experts", not a single expert. The obvi-

ous purpose of such a. rule is to protect against the destruction

of an attorney's career based on the observations of a single

doctor. The salutory purpose of requiring more than one medical

exarniner is highligntea here, in which the single doctor,

selected by adverse counsel, vras finally revealed to be an

attornev himself, and who holds himself out as in the employ of

the Committee.
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60. When the facial unfairness of such a delegation is

combined with the actual facts of this case, the reason that the

Rules of Court require that the court, not the prosecuting

attorney, must designate the medical experts becomes crystal'

clear. This Court should review this question of extreme public

- importance to make clear that the Appellate. Divisions may not

delegate such crucial power to the prosecuting attorney. This is

a question of great importance to the general public as well as

members of the Bar, because of the numerous proceedings in which

court-appointed.experts are involved in the most fundamental

decisions of personal liberty and property. This Court must make

clear that, in government enforcenent proceedings in general, and

attorney disciplinary proceedlngs ln particular, interested

prosecuting government attorneys may not replace the courts'

historic role in the selection of mandated neutral and indepen-

dent experts.

B. Thls Proceedlng Is Void Ab Inltlo
6L. In the Second Department, unless the attorney is

involuntarily committed or judicially declared incompetent, 22

NYCRR S 691-.13(a), or raises his incompetence as a defense to a

pending disciplinary proceeding, id. S 591.L3(c), the court

obtains jurisdiction to determine mental incapacity only when "a

committee appointed pursuant to section 691.4(a) of this part

shall petition this court to determine whether an attorney is

incapaci-tated. . . .tt id. 5 69L. L3 (b) (1) (emphasis added) .

Although this proceeding was purportedly instituted pursuant to

this latter subsection, these mandatory procedures were
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.ianittedly not

void ab initio

followed

and must

in

be

this case, and thls proceeding is thus

dismissed as jurisdictionallY

defective.
62. Appellant is not resting on some mere technieal-

ity, but on the denial of fundamental procedural- protections that

!.rere ignored in this case. The procedures by whlch mental

incapacity proceedings may be commenced against attorneys is a

matter of substantial public importance and the decision of the

court below, which negates the protections built into that

courtrs own rules, requires this Court's review and correction.

63. Section 591.13(b) (1), by requiring the committee

to petition the court for a determination of incapacity, reduces

the possibility for abuse that may arise, as occurred here, h'hen

the Committee's counsel, in the heat of litigation on unrelated

matters, sua sponte raises the issue of mental incapacity. Thus,

under the Second Department's rules, a petition cannot be insti-

tuted until there has been a majority vote of the fu1l Committee,

22 NYCRR S 69L.4(h), and with an opportunity for the filing of a

minority report to the court, to accompany "any majority report

and the written report of the subcommittee," id. S 69r.-4(i). The

Second Department, upon review of the report, then authorizes the

institution of a disciplinary proceeding and appointment of an

attorney bv order. A proeeeding is then commenced by Notice of

Petition executed by the Chairman of the Comrnittee. This pro-

cedure at least facilitates discussion, debate and consideration

by the Committee and the Court before the Committee initiates the

very serious and damaging proceeding alleging that an attorney is
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-6o mentally J-ncapacitated that she must be suspended from the

practice of Iaw. It also provides the court with the reports

that reflect the Connittee's views and assures the court that

there has been proper consideration of sufficient cause to

proceed further.
64. Here, these requisite and sal.utory procedures were

not followed. Rather than the institution of a plenary proceed-

ing by petition signed by the Committee Chairman, following a

vote by the Committee, submission of Committee or subcommittee

reports, and authorization by the court, the Chief counsel

instituted this proceeding by mere order to show cause and his

own affirmation. Because the record is completely devoid of any

hint that the Committee approved the proceeding pursuant to the

mandatory procedures of sections 691.4 (h) , (i) , 691.13 (b) (1) , Mr.

Casella simply had no legal authority to institute this
proceeding.

65. Even after Ms. Sassower obJected to thls fatal
defect, Iro evidence that the Committee had properly approved this
proceeding prior to its institution was placed on the record.

Rather, Mr. Casella slmply asserted: "counsel to the Grievance

Committee for the Ninth Judicial District was given ful1 author-

ity to bring on the subject Order to Show Cause." R. Ex. C

(Cassella Aff. I 6). This irrelevant staternent demonstrates that
the ful-l Committee did not properly vote to petition the court to
determine Ms. Sassower's mental capacity, ds required by the

Second Department's own rules. Nor can section 591.13(b) (1)

32



possibly be construed to authorize the Chief Counsel to initiate

a medical incapacity proceeding merely because of the existence

of an unrelated disclplinary proceeding agalnst that attorney.

66. The meaningful procedural protections of sect'ion

691.13(b) (1) must be strictly adhered to because of the drastic

consequences that may befall an attorney who is wrongfully sub-

jected to a mental incapacity proceeding, which includes severe

damage to personal and professional reputation, i.mproper subjec-

tion to psychiatric examination, indefinite suspension from the

practice of Iaw, and the grave difficulties of reinstatement,

j-ncluding proof of termination of dlsability by 'clear and con-

vincing evidence,' 22 NYCRR S 691.13(e) (f), wLth the burden of

proof placed on the suspended attorn€Y, id. S 591.13(f), and the

requirement of waiver of doctor-patient privlleg€r id. S

6e1. L3 (g) .

67. This Court should grant leave to make clear that

the meaningful procedures establlshed by the Appellate Di-visions'

own rules must be followed before a proceeding to determine

mental incapacity rnay be instituted, and that the failure to do

so renders this proceeding void ab initlo
e. The Proceedlng Was Entirely

gased On Improperly Obtalned ConfLdential Court Records

68. As noted, supra, Ms. Sassower's psychiatrist was

compelled by the court in Breslaw to testify about Ms. Sassower's

health in an unrelated matrimonial action. Pursuant to Dom. ReI.

Law S 23s(1):

An officer of the court with whorn the proceedings
in a matrimonial action . or before whom the
testirnony is takenr or his cIerk, either before or
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'aftertheterminationofthesult,shallnot
permit a copy of any of the pleadings . . . E

^ 
than a

pa;E or tEe attorney or counsel of a party,
exceit bv order of the court. (Emphasis added).

69. Mr. Casella has refused to divulge hovr he oblained

the transcript of the doctor's testlmony, which was ordered by

Justice Fredman, or the doctor's affirmation, which were required

to be kept confidential pursuant to Dom. Rel. Law 5 235(1).

However, there is no dispute that no court order authorized the

release of the transcript, affirmation, or decision. Absent such

a court order, ME. Casella's use of these records was improper,

as was the Second Department's consideration of them as the sole

basis for its October 18 order.

70. This case is closely analogous to Dondi, supra, in

which the Grievance Committee improperly obtained confidential

records in a criminal action. This Court held that the crievance

Committee could obtain such records onlv pursuant to a proper

motion by affirmatLon demonstratlng a compelting need for the

records, and only upon an order of the Appellate Division

unsealing the records, which order would be reviewable in this

Court. Dondi, 63 N.Y.2d at 338, 482 N.Y.S.2d at 435. Absent an

appropriate showing and a court order, the records would remain

sealed. Id.
7L. This Court need not decide in this case whether

the identical necessity standard must be met in a matrimonial

action as in a criminal court action before the Grievance Commit-

tee may obtain court records that are made confidential by

statute. AlI this Court need do is reiterate the clear prin-
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ciples of Dondi -- that a GrLevance Comml-ttee ls held to the same

standards as any other 11t19ant, and that tf it wants to use

confidentlal court records against an attorneYr it must obtain a

proper order making those records available.

72. Nor is it any answer that the confidential records

were given to the Chief Counsel, rather than that he obtained the

records himself (assuming that this Ls so). The result in Dondi

could not have been different if a court dtficer had violated CPL

S 160.50 and provided the records to the Committee. Mr. Casella

knew the transcript was part of a matrimonial actioni presumably,

he knew that pursuant to Dom. ReI. Law S 235(1), this transcript

was part of a confidential record in the absence of a court

order; and presumably, he knew of Dondi, which arose in the

Second Department. Under these circumstances, it was incumbent

upon hirn to obtain permission from the Appellate Division or

other authorized court to have the confidentiality of these

records lifted before he could use them or bring them to the

second Department's attention. Againr ds in Dondi, whether the

court may have granted his motion for access to the records is no

excuse for not seeking such permission in the first place. 63

N.Y.2d at 338-39, 482 N.Y.S.2d at 435.

73. Because the use of confidential court records

wlth this Court's decision in Dondi, and because suchconflicts

use raises a question of substantial public importance, not only
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-in attorney disciplinary proceedings, but in any case in which

government officLals seek to use confidential court records' this

court should grant leave to appeal on this lssue.V

D. The gecona Departnent L,acked Personal
.furisdlctlon, As The Uay 8, 1990 Order
was Served In ViolatLon Of ilud. Law 5 9O'

Pursuant to Jud. taw S 90(6), before an attorney l-s

suspended, ,,the charges against him must be delivered to him

personalLy,,, un}ess the presiding justice determines otherwise.

The May 8, 1990, order to show cause, which purported to initlate

this proceedingr. likewise specifically required personal service

onMs.Sassower.R.Ex.A(ordertoShor,rCause,dt3).
,Personal service" must be strictly construed in disciplinary

proceediDgsr in light of the strict confidentiality provisions of

Jud.LawSgo(1o).Thus,thesubstltutedserviceprovl.slonsof
CPLR 3O8 are inapplicable in suspension proceedings, because they

perrnit the breach of this strict confidentiality. Here, service

of the May 8 Order was not made on Ms. Sassower. The Committee

could have, but did not, seek authorization from the presiding

9-/ Appellant submits that the transcript and doctor's
affirmition do not, in any event, provide a sufficient
evj-dentiary basis to institute a proceeding to determine mental
in-apacity under section 69L.f.3(b) (1). Ms. Sassower's physician-
mereiy stitea in april tggO that he felt that Ms. Sassower needed
i Lrilf sixtvtlel-;AJou;nment from stressful court appearances in
which sne wEEIE?soniIIy involved, and that in his opinion, her
continued involvement in such matters may be delaying her
improvement. R. Ex. A (Exhibit A). As noted, or April 20, 1990,
Juige Fredman explicitly found that she was "quite capable" of
participating in all proceedings before him, and that there was
iro medital bisis for lny adjouinment. R. Ex. A (Exhibit c). Had
the decision whether to institute this proceeding been properly
considered by the fu}} Committee, rather than by a highly
partisan adv-ocate, it is unlikely that this proceeding would ever
have been commenced.

36



justice for substituted service' In light of

provisions of Jud. Law SS 90(6), (1O) and the

Cause, this proceeding must be disrnissed for

due to improPer service.

the express

May 8 Order to Show

Iack of jurisdiction

III. A gTAY SIIOUIJD BE GRANTED
REINSTAIING I{8. SASSOWER PENDING
DETERI.TINATION OT THE UOTION AND APPEAI'

74. The factors for determinlng the propriety of a

stay of the June L4 Order, pursuant to CPLR S 5519 (c) , weigh

heavily in Ms. Sassower's favor. See 7 Weinstein, Korn, Miller,

New York civil Practice, { 551-9.L3, at 55-L81 (1990) (factors

,rthe court will consider are the merits of the appeal, harm that

might accrue to the appellant if the stay is denJ-ed, and

potential prejudice to the respondent if the stay is granted")'

75. As demonstrated l-n Points I and II, supra, Ms'

Sassolnler is likely to prevail on the merits of this appeal.

Second, Ms. Sassower is obviously suffering continuing grievous

and irreparable harm to her reputation, her career, and her live-

lihood as a result of her published immediate, indefinite, and

unconditional suspension from the practice of law.

76. Third, bY contrast, dDY harm or prejudice to the

Comrnittee or the public would be de minimis or nonexistent if l{s.

Sassower hrere reinstated nunc pro tunc pending determination of

this motion, and, if granted, ultimate resolution of this appeal.

As previously discussed, both the Committee and the Second

Department displayed no urgency in this matter and Mr. Casella

never met his burden of showing "professional misconduct

immediately threatening the public interest".
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rv. TEE JAHUARY 28, L99L ORDER TO SEOW CAUSE
DTD NOlr CONFORI{ TO LEGAT REQUIREIT{ENTS
AND COULD NOT SERVE AS A BASIS FOR THE
JUNE 14 SUSPENSION ORDER.

77. A reading of the relevant provisions of the

Judiciary Law and the Rules of the Appetrlate Division, Second

Department, shows that a formal petition procedure is absolutely

required for any proceeding calling for suspension, initiated by

petitioner independent of any claimed disability on the part of
the subject attorney. This is true whether the suspension is
predicated on mental ineapacity or professional misconduct. The

unnistakable intent, of the Legislature and of the Appellate

Division in both cases is to assure a maximum of protection to
the accused attorney by providing many levels of opportunity for
caution, review, evaluation, and opportunity to be heard before

the drastic step of suspension is taken.

78. Thus, under Section 691.4 of the Rules of the

Appellate Division, Second Department, under which Petitionerrs
Order to Show Cause dated January 28, 1991 purportedly proceeded,

it is contemplated under subdivision (e) (4) of that RuIe that
after initiating a specific complaint, such as here, of rrfailure

to cooperate or complyrt--subsequent to preliminary investigation
and upon a najority vote of the full committee, it is the

Committee which decides whether to rrserve written charges upon

the attorney and hold a hearingrr or, ES in subparagraph (5),
rrforthwith recommend to this Court the institution of a

disciplinary proceeding where the public interest demands prornpt
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action and nhere the available facts show probable cause for such

action[. Where no such exigency exists, the Conmittee is
empowered, under subdivision (f), to prefer rrwritten charges

predicated thereon, plainly stating the matter oni"tt"t=
charged, together with a notice of not less that 20 days...

served upon the person concernedtr. . . who rrshall f ile a written
answer.... and the committee shall proceed to hold a hearing of

the case....Upon the completion of a hearing, the committee...

may recommend that probable cause exists for the filing of

disciplinary charges against the respondent in this court.rr

79. As noted hereinabove, prior to obtaining its
January 28, 1991 Order to Show Cause seeking immediate suspension

for her alleged trfailure to cooperate or complytr, the Committee

never served any written charges based thereon upon Ms. Sassower,

never held any hearing on the intended charges against her, and

never obtained court approval to initiate a petition to commence

a disciplinary proceeding against her based on the aforesaid

alleged professional misconduct, after the prescribed rnajority
vote of a committee authorizing same. Without even an

allegation, Iet alone proof of exigent circumstances, i.e., that
the Comrnittee believed that rrthe public interest demands prompt

action and that rrthe available facts show probable cause for
suspension, Mr. casella obtained the January 28, t991 order to
show cause, without the requisite supporting petition setting
forth any basis for exigency, but on Mr. caselrars affirmation
arone--giving Ms. sassower as littre as seven (7) days to ans$rer

Mr. Casellars motion.
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80. Moreover, under the expllcit language of paragraph

2 of Section 691.4 of the Ru1es, relied on by Mr. Casella in

procuring his January 28, 1991 order to Show Cause:

" (21 The suspension shalI be made upon the
application of the Grievance Committee to
this court, after notice of such application
has been given to the attorney pursuant to
subdivision six of section 9o of the
Judiciary Law. rr'

No such notice was ever given.

81. Paragraph (21 goes on to provide:
rrThe Court shall further state its reasons
for its order of suspension which shall be
effective immediately and until such tirne as
the disciplinary matters before the committee
have been concluded, and until further order
of this court.rl

The June L4 Order failed to state anv reasons for its suspension

order and made it unconditional on the conclusion of any pending

disciplinary matters.

82. Those serious and substantive blatant
deficiencies manifestly render the June 19 order jurisdictionally

and procedurally void under minimum due process standards. They

also further substantiate the contention of invidious and

selective prosecution, made by Ms. sassower in her initial
answering papers and in support of her cross-motion (R. Ex. B:

pp. 5-9).
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CONCI,USION

83. For the reasons stated herein, appellant

respectfully urges the court to grant appellant's motion for

leave to appeal, and to grant a stay of the June 14 Order, sb

that Ms. Sassower is reinstated as an attorney in the State of

New york nunc prc tunc pending determination of this motion and,

if the motion is granted, pending ultinate resolution of this

appeal.

Dated: New York, New York
JuIy 19, 1991

DAVID B. GOLDSTEIN
RABTNOWAAZ, BOUDTN, STANDARD,

KRINSKY & LIEBERMAN
74O Broadway, 5th Floor
New York, New York 10003
(2L2' 2s4-1111

Attorneys for Appe1l-ant
Doris L. Sassower
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